BEFORE THE
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
PIPELINE AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS SAFETY ADMINISTRATION

x

IN THE MATTER OF: 7

%

A
Carib Supply St. Croix, Inc., PHMSA CASE NUMBER

12-0059-CR-SO

(Respondent).

COMPROMISE ORDER

By this Order I find that Carib Supply St. Croix, Inc. (Respondent) committed six (6)
violations of the Hazardous Materials Regulations (HMR), 49 C.F.R. Parts 171-180.
Accordingly, I assess Respondent a $11,000 civil penalty for these violations.

I. Summary

Respondent: Carib Supply St. Croix, Ine.
P.O. Box 3770
Christiansted, VI 00822

No. of Violations: 6

Total Payment Due: $11,000

IL. Finding

This matter comes before me after Respondent and the Pipeline and Hazardous
Materials Safety Administration (PHMSA) agreed to a disposition of this civil enforcement
action. I have reviewed the Compromise Agreement (Agreement) and I find that the terms as
outlined therein are in the best interest of justice. I find Respondent committed the violations

as described in the Agreement, which is attached as Addendum A to this Order, and I impose



a civil penalty of $11,000. Respondent must pay the civil penalty in accordance with the
instructions contained in Addendum B to this Order.

The Agreement, in its entirety, is incorporated in and attached to this Order. All of
the terms and conditions of the Agreement shall be given the full force and effect of an Order
issued pursuant to the Federal hazardous materials transportation law, 49 U.S.C. § 5101, et

seq., or the Hazardous Materials Regulations, 49 C.F.R. Parts 171 - 180.

Dated: 5 '// / / A ﬁ/} So Ordered,

ssa L. Allen Sutherland
hief Counsel
Pipeline and Hazardous
Materials Safety Administration




CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

n )
This is to certify that on the Ia day of }M{g h , 2013, the undersigned served in the
following manner the designated copies of this Order with attached Addendums to each party

listed below:

Original Order with
Copy of Agreement
Certified Mail Return Receipt

Mr. Maxwell Wilson, General Manager
Carib Supply St. Croix, Inc.

#3 Cassava Gardens, Hess Road

P.O. Box 3770

Christiansted, St. Croix, USVI 00822

Enforcement Officer

Office of Hazardous Materials Safety Field Operations
1200 New Jersey Avenue, S.E.

Washington, D.C. 02590-0001

Mr. John P. Heneghan, Director

Office of Hazardous Materials Safety Field Operations
Southern Region, PHH-46

233 Peachtree Street NE, Suite 602

Atlanta, Georgia 30303

One Original
First Class Mail — Return Receipt

One Copy (without enclosures)
Electronic Mail

One Copy (without enclosures)
Electronic Mail

Jewel Smith
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BEFORE THE
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION |
PIPELINE AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS SAFETY ADMINISTRATION

IN THE MATTER OF:

Carib Supply St. Croi, Inc. 8 pHMSA CASE Number:
(Respondent) Z

12-0059-CR-50

1. Parties
The Parties to this Compromise Agreement (Agreement) are:

Carib Supply St. Croiz, Ine. (“Respondent”), a mannfacturer of industrial and

" medical gases, Josated in Christiansted, St. Croix

and

 The Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Safety Administration (‘PHMSA”), a
modal Administeation of the United States Department of Transportation.

1. -Authority/Jurisdiction

A. The Parties enter into this Agreement under authority of 49 U.8.C. § 5123(c) and
49 CF.R. § 107.327(a)(L). |

B. For the Purposes of this Agreement, Respondent acknowledges:

' (1) Asamanufacturer of industrial and medical gases, it is a regulated entity
subject to the Hazardous Materials Regulations (HMR) and to the jurisdiction of (a) the
Secretary of Transportation, (b) the PHMSA’s Associate Administrator for Hazardous
Materials Safety, and (c) PHMSA’s Office of the Chief Counsel (49 U.S.C. § 5103(b)

and 49 CF.R. § 107.301);

(2) PHMSA has sufficient proof to show by a preponderance of the evidence
that Respondent violated the Federal regulations listed in Section V below; and



V

(3) That it received proper notice of PHMSA’s action in this proceeding.

I, Background

A, On February 14, 2012, an Inspector from PEIMSA’s Office of Hazardous
Materials Safety Field Operations (OHMSFO) conducted a routine compliance inspection
at Respondent’s business pursuant to 49 11.8.C. § 5121 and 49 C.FR. §107.305.
PHMSA’s Inspector reported six (6) alleged violations of the HMR. At the conclusion of
the complianee inspection, PHMSA’s Inspector conducted an “exit briefing” during
which the Inspector discussed the alleged violations and the required corrective actions
with Respondent’s representative. '

B. Upon completion of the compliance inspection, the Inspector submitted 8 report
to the Region Director of OHMSFOQ’s Southern Region, who reviewed the report for
accuracy and sufficiency of evidence. Based on that review, the Region Director referred
the matter to PHMSA’s Office of Chief Counsel thereby recommending the initiation of 2
civil penalty action against Respondent pursuant to 49 C.F.R. § 107.3 11,

C, Based on a preliminary assessment of the apparent nature, clrcumstances, extent,
and gravity of the probable viclations, as set forth in the Inspector’s repott, on November
16, 2012, an attorney from PHMSA’s Office of Chief Counsel issued a Notice of '
Probable Viclation (Notice) alleging six (6) violations of the HMR and proposing a
$14.669 civil penalty. - ,

IV. Basis of Agreement

A. Reply to Notice. On Deceraber 7, 2012, Respondent submitted a timely reply to
the Notice and requested an extension of time in which to respond to the Notice. An
extension was granted, and on January 8, 2013, Respondent submitted its response to the
Notice.

B. Corective &cﬁbn. In a corresgpondence dated March 8, 2012, Respondent
submitted evidence of corrective actions it had taken in response to the exit briefing. The
following is a summary of all of Respondent’s cotrective actions.

Violation

Number Respondent’s Corrective action

Respondent indicated that its test equipment is calibrated daily prior to testing
to verify its accuracy. Respondent also indicted that it had purchased a new
calibrated cylinder and provided a copy of the certificate of calibration and
purchase invoice for the calibrated cylinder. -

Respondent stated that it had coniracted with ChemTel, Ine. to provide
2 emergency response information support. Respondent provided a copy of its
 agresment with ChemTel, Inc. as further proof af its corrective action.

Respondent stated that it had purchased training to address this area.

Respondent indicated that it had gecured a training date and provided a copy




corrective action for this violation.

oF the eourse program and it¢ payment for the training in support of its

of its purchases.

Respondent indicted that it had purchased the small instruments and pérts
necessary for it o perfotin visnal inspections in accordance with the
requirements, Respondent provided a copy of the packing slips as evidence

invoice for its purchase of the CGA materials.

Respondent stated that it had ordeted the current CGA pamphlets that are
applicable to its testing activities, Respondent submitted a copy of the .

DOT.

Respondent indicated that, upon completion of the upcoming training for its
hazmat employess, it intended to submit a list of its trained personnel to

C. Small Business Size. Evidence in the record
a small business. :

V. Violations and Civil Penalty

also substantiates that Respondent is

I a subsequent Ordér, the Chief Counsel will find that Respondent committed the
following violations and will assess the following civil penalty:

Viol.
No.

HMR
Violation

NOPV
Penalty
Amount

Cornpromise
Penalty
Amount

Representing, marking, and cestifying oylinders as
having been successfully requalified in aocordance
with the Hazardous Material Regulations (HMR),

‘when the requalifier failed to successfully

demonstrate system calibration prior to performing
requalification testing on DOT cylinders, as required
by 49 CFR §§ 171.2(c), (g), and 180.205(g)(1), (3) &
(%), ‘

$3,650

$2.737

Offering for transportation, in commerce, 4
hazardous material (Carbon dioxide, 2.2, UN1013),
and others, while listing an unauthorized emergency
response telephone number, in violation of 49 CFR
§§ 171.2(a), (b), {¢), (¢), and 172.604(2) & (b).

$3,400

$2,550

Representing, marking and certifying a DOT
specification cylinder as having been sucoessfully
retested, when the re-qualifier failed to keep
complete and accurate records as required by 49 CFR
§§ 171.2(2) and 180.215(b)(2).

$2,000

$1,500

Representing, marking and certifying a DOT
specification cylinder as having been guccessfully -
retested, when the re-gualifier failed to perform a
complete visual inspection as required by 49 CFR §§

$3,650

$2,737




[ 171.2(g) and 180.205(E)(1).

Representing, marking, and certifying DOT
specification cylinders as having been successfully .
retested in accordance with the HMR, while failing to 3900 $675
maintain copies of the CGA pamphlets applicable to
cylinder requalification and marking activities, in
violation of 49 CFR §8 171.2(c) and 180.215(a)(6).

| Representing, marking, and certifymg DOT
specification cylinders as having been suecessiully
retested in accordance with the MR, while failing to
6 | report in writing changes in test equipment and - 81,069 $801
personnel performing cylinder requalification, in
violation of 49 CFR §§ 171.2(c), 107.805(g) and
180.215(a)(3).

TOTAL | —-- - $14,669 11,000

VL. Pactors Considered in Determining the Civil Penalty

Tn determining the amount of a civil penalty, PHMSA considered the following
statutory eriteria (49 U.8.C. § 5123(¢)):

(1) The nature, circumstances, extent, and gravity of the violations;

(2) The degree of culpability and history of prior violations;

(3) Respondent’s size;

4) Respondent’s ability to pay the penalty and its ability to continue to do business;
and '

(5) Other matters as justice may require.

Documentation of Respondent’s cqrrcdtive actions for these violations and the fact
that Respondent is a small business, justify assessing a civil pepalty of $11,000.

VII. Terms and Conditions

A. Respondent agt;ees to pay the sum of $11,000, as full satisfaction of the civil
penalty proposed in the Notice. Respondent is to make the payment within 30 days from
the date the Chief Counsel issues the Final Order, which will issue after Respondent signs
and returns this Agreement. :

B. By entering into this Agreement, Respondent waives:

(1) Any right to present further written or oral explanations, information, and
arguments in this matter; _

(2) Auny right to Administrative appeal; and




(3) Any right to seek judicial review or otherwise contest or challenge the
validity of this Agreement or the Notice associated with this cage.

C, This Agreement resolves only the violations noted in PHMSA, Ref. No. 12-0059-
CR-80 as reforenced in Section V of this Agreement. In the event Respondent commits

~ any future violations of the Federal hazardous material transportation law, 49 UB.C. §

5101 et seq., the HMR, or any exenption, or order issued thereunder these violations.
shall constitutte a prior violation under 49 U.8.C. § 5123. '

D. After Respondent teturns this signed Agreement, PHMSA’s representative will
present the Agreement to the Chief Counsel requesting that the Chief Counsel adopt the
terms of this Agreement by issuing a Compromise Order (49 C.F.R. § 107.327(a)(1)).
The tetms of this Agreement constitnte an offer of compromise until accepted by the
Chief Counsel. '

E. After issuance of the Compromise Order, Respondent must pay the civil penalty
in aceordance with the terms of this Agreement. Upon receipt of Respondent’s final
payment, the Chief Counsel will close this case with prejudice to the Respondent
(49 C.F.R. § 107.327(a)(1)({1)).

VIII. Miscellaneous Provisions

A. By signing this Agreement, Respondent or its representative warrants 1o have
read the Agreement and understood its tertns and conditions.

B. The individuals signing on behalf of the Respondent and PHMSA represent that
they are authorized to sign and have authority to enter into this Agreement.

C. Respondent’s failure to sign and return this Agreement within thirty (30) days
froma its receipt will result in the withdrawal of this Agreement and the Chief Coungel
will issue an Order putsuant to 49 C.F.R. §§ 107.317(d), for the full amount of the
penalty proposed in the Notice.



. 1. Respondent mnst refurn the signed Agreement to;

Vincent Lopez

United States Department of Transportation
Pipeline and Hazardous

Materials Safety Administration

1200 New Jersey Avenue, 8.E.,

PHC-10, Room F26-328

Washington, D.C, 20590-0001

Respondent

Federal Tax ID #: G0 4p 5779 7 '

By Mlfaisi MIZSW.‘@.%@M@ﬁ: Date: phptt! "7, 2643
Name, Capacity or position _

Pipeline and Hazardous
Materials Safety Administration

By: //W (4:)/

- Date:o%: I1- |5
Vincent Lopez, Aitorney-Advisor

! The Taxpayer Identifying Namber is required by 31 U.B.C. § 7701(2)(3), PERMSA will use this number
for purposes of eollecting and reporting on any delinguent amounts arising aut of this npresment,

[
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Payment Information
Respondent must pay a total civil penalty of $11,000 in accordance with the following:
Dug date |
Respondent must pay the civil penalty within 30 days of the date of this Order.

Payment Method

Respondent must pay the civil penalty by wire transfer.

Interest and Administrative Charges

If Respondent pays the civil penalty by the due date, no interest will be charged.
If Respondent does not pay by that date, the FAA’s Financial Operations Division will
start collection activities and may assess interest, a late-payment penalty, and
administrative charges under 31 U.S.C. § 3717, 31 C.F.R. § 901.9, and 49 C.F.R. § 89.23.

The rate of interest is determined under the above authorities. Interest accrues
from the date of this Order. A late-payment penalty of six percent (6%) per year applies
to any portion of the debt that is more than 90 days past due. The late-payment penalty is
calculated from the date Respondent receives the Order.

Treasury Department Collection ‘

FAA’s Financial Operations Division may also refer this debt and associated
charges to the U.S. Department of Treasury for collection. The Department of the
Treasury may offset these amounts against any payment due Respondent (31 C.F.R.
§901.3).

Under the Debt Collection Act (see 31 U.S.C. § 3716(a)), a debtor has certain
procedural rights prior to an offset. You, as the debtor, have the right to be notified of:
(1) the nature and amount of the debt; (2) the agency’s intention to collect the debt by
offset; (3) the right to inspect and copy the agency records pertaining to the debt; (4) the
right to request a review within the agency of the indebtedness and (5) the right to enter
into a written agreement with the agency to repay the debt. This Order constitutes written
notification of these procedural rights.



INSTRUCTIONS FOR ELECTRONIC FUNDS TRANSFER TO
PIPELINE AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS SAFETY ADMINISTRATION,
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

1. RECEIVER’S ABA NO. 2. TYPE SUBTYPE
021030004 : : (provided by sending bank)

3. SENDING BANK ARB NO. 4. SENDING BANK REF NO.
(provided by sending bank) (provided by sending bank)

5. AMOUNT 6. SENDING BANK NAME

‘ (provided by sending bank)

7. RECEIVER NAME: 8. PRODUCT CODE (Normally CTR, or
TREAS NYC sending bank)

9. BENEFICIAL (BNF)- AGENCY 10. REASONS FOR PAYMENT
LOCATION CODE Example: PHMSA Payment for Case
BNF=/AC-69140001 #/Ticket

INSTRUCTIONS: You, as sender of the wire transfer, must provide the sending bank
with the information for Block (1), (5), (7), (9), and (10). The information provided in
blocks (1), (7), and (9) are constant and remain the same for all wire transfers to the
Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Safety Administration, Department of Transportation

Block #1 - RECEIVER ABA NO. - “021030004”. Ensure the sending bank enters this
nine digit identification number; it represents the routing symbol for the U.S. Treasury at
the Federal Reserve Bank in New York.

Block #5 - AMOUNT - You as the sender provide the amount of the transfer. Please be
sure the transfer amount is punctuated with commas and a decimal point. EXAMPLE:
$10,000.007

Block #7 - RECEIVER NAME- “TREAS NYC." Ensure the sending bank enters this
abbreviation, which must be used for all wire transfer to the Treasury Department.

Block #9 - BENEFICIAL - AGENCY LOCATION CODE - “BNF=/AC-69140001"
Ensure the sending bank enters this information. This is the Agency Location Code for
Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Safety Administration, Department of Transportation

Block #10 - REASON FOR PAYMENT - “AC-Payment for PHMSA Case#” To ensure
your wire transfer is credited properly, enter the case number/ticket number or Pipeline
Assessment number

Note: - A wire transfer must comply with the format and instructions or the Department
cannot accept the wire transfer. You, as the sender, can assist this process by notifying, at
the time you send the wire transfer, the General Accounting Division at (405) 954-8893.




